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	“The Scoutmaster guides the boy in the spirit of another brother”
Sir Robert Baden-Powell

(1857 – 1941)


	?
	We are seeking :

· School rolls for this year.

· Further information regarding the Reverend HWM Handford.

· Confirmation or otherwise that the Rev Handford took responsibility for the Scouts when the Rev Tomlinson left Rusthall in September.

· Further information regarding the Withyham camps.

· Further information regarding the link between Rusthall and Withyham.
· The date on which Scouting in Rusthall ceased in the early part of the First World War

· Copies of the St Paul’s Parish Church Parish Magazine for this year.

· Copies of the Kent & Sussex Courier for this year.

· Any knowledge that you may have of this year.


Can you help ? Please click HERE if you can.
Annual Inspection of CLB and Scouts

Renaming of ICSP as the Scouting Section of CLB Training Corps

March  1915

From Rusthall News, The Courier – 2 April 1915

CLB - At the annual inspection of the CLB, Major Johnson, who inspected the Company, expressed his satisfaction with the work done, and especially commended the work of the NCOs. The Officer Commanding made the following promotions :  Privates A Grinter, F Harris and E Down to be Lance-Corporals.
Scouts - At the recent annual inspection all the ranks are reported to have done well, and Corporals R Copper, F Francis, H Holmwood, and H Howard, Lance-Corporal W Wood and Scout C Tanner won second-class badges.  
Headquarters have issued an order that in future all patrols of the ICSP. shall be known as Scouting Sections of the CLB Training Corps.  
The Scouts have been very busy lately taking out circulars and clearing up the grounds of the V.A.D. Hospital.

Researchers’ note – The inspection was probably a Company inspection in advance of the Annual Battalion Inspection to be held in Maidstone in May

Support for the Rusthall VAD Hospital
April 1915
On 16 April a notice was published in the Courier by the Rusthall Voluntary Hospital (Kent 154), signed by the Commandant (Rachel Ard) and the Secretary (Harry Kemble), acknowledging local practical and financial support for the hospital. 
The valuable service given by Rusthall Boy Scouts was recorded.

Eggs for Heroes
May 1915
Clive Roberts’ book, “Rusthall’s Fallen”, tells us that, in the second week of May, each child at the Infants School was asked to bring in an egg for a wounded soldier at the VAD Hospital. On the prescribed day the children returned after lunch with a total of 50 eggs.
Researchers’ note - We wonder whether any of the children were members of our Incorporated Church Scouts Patrol – hopefully research will tell.
Reverend HWM  Handford is appointed 
Curate of St Paul’s

May 1915

At Whitsuntide, the Reverend HWM Handford was appointed Curate at St Paul’s Rusthall.
Church Lads’ Brigade Annual Inspection

Whit Monday 24 May 1915

The numbers attending reflected the large number of young men who joined the Armed Forces.
From The Courier - 28 May 1915

The annual inspection of the Rochester Cadet Battalion of the Church Lads’ Brigade took place on Whit Monday in the grounds of Preston Hall, near Maidstone.  The Inspecting Officer was Major R. Saunders Johnson, of Tunbridge Wells.  The St James’, Pembury and Rusthall Companies journeyed by train from Tunbridge Wells, the Officers in Command being Captain Bosanquet, Captain Knight and Lieutenant Chapman. The Tonbridge Company was also well represented.
Major Dixon, of Erith, was in command of the Battalion, who paraded in the morning for Divine Service at Holy Trinity Church, Maidstone, where an address was given by the Rev. E.C. Heel (Curate). 
The Battalion afterwards marched to Aylesford, and after lunch, were drawn up for inspection.  Major Johnson was received with a general salute, after which the Battalion was split into sections for company training.  
After re-assembling, three cheers for the King were given in commemoration of Empire Day.  Major Johnson addressed the lads and complimented them on their smart appearance.  The lads then marched back to Maidstone, and enjoyed a hearty tea in the Holy Trinity Schoolroom.
The local number on parade was 350 which was an excellent muster, considering that, out of the 445 who paraded a year ago, 310 of the members and five of the officers have joined His Majesty’s Forces.  
Researchers’ note - The Rusthall News Column in the Courier of the same date mentions that the Rev. A Tomlinson accompanied the Rusthall CLB (and presumably the Church Scouts) for the Field day and Inspection at Maidstone. 
The Annual ICSP Weekend camp

Withyham
July 1915
Clive’s fine book also tells us that, in July, the Church Lads’ Brigade (the Incorporated Church Scouts Patrol) went on their annual weekend camp to Withyham.
It also tells us that :
The final Sunday of August saw the ladies service take place at St Paul’s Church, and that same weekend the Band of Hope journeyed to Withyham. They took with them their packed lunches, but afternoon tea was supplied by the local Scout Group who expertly built campfires to boil water.

Summer Camping at Withyham

July & August 1915

Brief notes appearing in the Rusthall News column of the Courier of 9 July and 6 August report that the St Paul’s Company of the Church Lads’ Brigade (presumably including the Church Scouts) spent short periods in camp at Withyham, with Rev A Tomlinson in charge.  
The July event was described as a week-end bivouac.  The Bugle Band participated and the activities included drill and night operations.  
In August the camp extended from Sunday until Tuesday evening.  No further details of the location of the camp are given.
The Band of Hope visit Withyham

August 1915

According to the Rusthall News in the Courier of 15 August 1915, The Rev Handford accompanied the Rev A Tomlinson and a Miss Reynolds on a visit to Withyham with children of the Band of Hope.  
The Scouts were present at this event and were responsible for making tea on camp fires.
Researchers’ note – The ongoing link between the villages of Rusthall and Withyham is intriguing. We intend, in time, to explore the St Paul’s records and those of St Michael & All Angels, with a view to explaining this.

Departure of the Reverend A Tomlinson

Saturday 4 September 1915
From The Courier - 10 September 1915

Rev A Tomlinson, who served as Curate at St Paul’s Rusthall for more than ten years, was this month appointed Vicar of Matfield.  
A farewell party was arranged at the Parish Room on Saturday 4th September and of course ‘members of the Boy Scouts, in whom he had taken a lively interest, were in attendance’.  
The Chairman of the proceedings, F.W.Elders, spoke of the affection that everyone had for Rev Tomlinson and said that Mr Tomlinson had been ‘grumbling and growling because he could not take his Lads Brigade and Boy Scouts with him’.  ‘Fortunately he was not going far away, and no doubt they would hear from him returning with his Brigade and storming the Toad Rock and capturing it.’  
In his tribute to Mr Tomlinson, the Vicar, Rev . Canon Eden, said that ‘If there was any delay in getting someone to look after the boys it would be because he was anxious to get someone who would endeavour to follow in the footsteps of Mr Tomlinson.’  
Researchers’ note - it would appear that the Reverend HWM Handford became responsible for the Scouts after the departure of the Reverend A Tomlinson in September
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	Walter Edward Wood

20 November 1895 to  

28 October 1915

Former Rusthall CLB Member
	


A former Member of Rusthall CLB, Walter Edward Wood, son of Mr and Mrs Wood, of 2 Oak View, Tuxford Road, Rusthall, was born at Speldhurst.  He went to school in Rusthall and was a member of the Rusthall Church Lads’ Brigade although there is no confirmation that he was a member of the ICSP.  
He enlisted in the Royal Engineers in the first month of the War in August 1914, and was attached as Sapper to the 1st/3rd Field Company, Fortress R.E.  He was aboard HMS Hythe which sank approaching the Dardanelles when it was in collision with another troop ship, HMS Sarnia and drowned on October 28th 1915.  
His name is recorded on the Speldhurst Roll of Honour, the CWGC Helles Memorial, Turkey and the Tunbridge Wells War Memorial.  It is also recorded on a memorial plaque which was originally mounted in the former Drill Hall in Speldhurst Road, Southborough.  This memorial was unveiled by Sir David Salomons on 28th October 1916 and honours those members of the 1st/3rd Field Company, Royal Engineers, including his son, Captain David Reginald Salomons, who perished in the disaster.  Following the demolition of the Drill Hall, the plaque was relocated to St Matthews Church, High Brooms. 
Scout Movement Milestones - 1915
	September
	British Scout Hut opened at Etaples.


Click HERE if you have any further information regarding this year
or

HERE to return to our Navigation page
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